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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

September 23, 2024

To the Honorable Chairman, Members of the Board of Directors of the Roanoke Valley Resource
Authority and Citizens of the Cities of Roanoke and Salem, the County of Roanoke and the
Town of Vinton, Virginia:

We are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority (Authority) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. This audit was
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Specifications for
Audits of Authorities, Boards and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts for
the Commonwealth of Virginia.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the
Authority.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for both the accuracy of
the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentations, including all disclosures.
Management has established a comprehensive framework of internal control to provide a
reasonable basis to make these representations. Because the cost of internal controls should
not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. To the best
of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed financial data is accurate in all material respects
and fairly presents the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Authority.
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority’s
financial activities have beenincluded.

The basic financial statements have been audited by our independent auditors, Robinson,
Farmer, Cox Associates, PLLC, who have issued an unmodified (clean) opinion on the financial
statements of the Authority for the year ending June 30, 2024. The annual audit was
conducted in accordance with professional standards which require that the independent
auditors plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute, assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The independent
auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be
read inconjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (Authority) was established on October 23, 1991, as a
tax-exempt political subdivision within the Commonwealth of Virginia to acquire and
construct a regional sanitary landfill and waste collection and transfer station with related
treatment facilities. The charter members are the City of Roanoke, County of Roanoke, and the
Town of Vinton. The Authority began its operations in 1993. The City of Salem joined July 1, 2016
and RVRA assumed ownership and operational control of Salem's transfer station on November 1,
2016. The Authority's Board of Directors consists of nine members; five are appointed by Roanoke
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County, two are appointed by Roanoke City, one is appointed by Salem City, and one is appointed
by the Town of Vinton. Each member is appointed for a four-year term. Regular meetings of the
Board of Directors are normally held monthly. The Authority is administered by a Chief Executive
Officer (CEO). The CEO has the direct supervision of all employees of the Authority, the
responsibility for the operation of the Authority’s facilities, and the establishment of guidelines
for efficient and sound fiscal management.

Residents and businesses in the Cities of Roanoke and Salem, Roanoke County, and the Town of
Vinton generate approximately 300,000 tons of wastes every year with approximately 250,000
tons landfilled at the Authority’s Smith Gap Landfill (SGLF). The remaining tonnages are
transported by private haulers to another landfill, recycled, or disposed of through an alternate
process. Each locality collects its own residential trash using internal resources and are
contractually obligated to use the Authority’s facilities for disposal. Commercial and industrial
solid waste is primarily collected by commercial waste haulers. Commercial haulers, except for
one as discussed later, are not contractually obligated to deliver their solid waste to the Authority.
After collection, municipal and commercial refuse collection trucks may deliver their trash to
either the Authority's Tinker Creek Transfer Station (TCTS) in the City of Roanoke or the Salem
Transfer Station (STS) in the City of Salem. Several commercial haulers currently elect to use a
private transfer station and haul their solid waste out of the region.

Historically, the Authority utilized rail haul to transport the solid waste it received at its transfer
stations to the SGLF. However, the Authority initiated the conversion of its rail haul operations to
trucking via tractor trailers in FY’21. On April 5, 2021, the Authority began the final stages of
converting its dedicated rail spur to its Smith Gap Landfill (SGLF) to a dedicated access road. The
Authority transported the solid waste received at its transfer stations to a third-party landfill
during construction of the access road. Construction of the access road was completed in July,
2021 and the Authority resumed transporting its municipal solid waste (MSW) to its SGLF by tractor
trailers.

Additionally, in FY’22, the Authority began construction modifications to its TCTS to complete
necessary operational conversions. During construction at the TCTS, the bulk of the Authority’s
customers, both municipal and commercial, were directed to the Authority’s STS for the majority
of FY’22. Full operational use of the TCTS resumed in May 2022 and transfer station construction
modifications were completed in FY’23. The installation of scales at the SGLF was completed in
FY’24.

With the construction of the new access road to the SGLF, the Authority solicited and issued a
contract with a commercial hauler for the direct-delivery of 100,000 tons per year solid waste to
the landfill also via tractor trailers. The contract hauler delivered approximately 52,000 tons and
59,000 tons of solid waste to the Authority in FY’23 and FY’24, respectively, that the Authority
had not been receiving for several years. In FY’24, this contract was amended down to 80,000 tons
per year. The direct deliveries do not impose additional costs on the Authority’s transfer stations
or its transportation operations. At the SGLF, upon resuming operations with the truck-delivered
MSW, the trailers are now unloaded directly onto the landfill working face without additional
handling. The MSW is inspected and covered daily in a 1,200 acre, environmentally protected
landfill disposal area that meets all state and federal regulations.

Budgetary and Accounting Controls

The Authority is required to prepare and submit an annual operating budget to the Charter
Members for approval on or before April 1 of each year for the upcoming fiscal year (July 1 to
June 30). The budget is prepared by staff of the Authority and serves as the foundation for the
Authority's financial planning and control.



The Authority's accounting records are maintained on an accrual basis under which revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Accounting functions are
separated to the extent possible for a small sized staff. The County of Roanoke currently is the
fiscal agent for the Authority. The accounting system the Authority is using belongs to the County
and County staff has provided support and assistance to the Authority in its accountingoperations.

Local Economy

The Authority draws from a regional labor force of approximately 300,000 within a radius of sixty
miles. The Roanoke Valley as well as the surrounding communities, are fortunate that their
economic indicators are more favorable compared to some of the neighboring localities and to
the State, but there remain formidable challenges for the Roanoke Valley; not only in the delivery
of local government and authority services, but also in maintaining our traditionally high standard
of living and quality of life.

The Economic Development Department of each locality successfully utilizes provisions under the
public/private partnership policy that allows businesses to receive assistance from them for
qualifying facility expansions and relocations. The expected return on investment in new taxes
and employment is a critical measure governing the use of public funds to assist businesses and
industries.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The Authority annually reviews the adequacy of the Replacement Reserve Requirements under the
current operating conditions, and in comparison, with industry standards. The review is done in
consultation with a professional engineer familiar with solid waste services, equipment, and
facilities as utilized by the Authority. A professional consulting engineer, external to the Authority,
reviews the plan every five years. The Authority has defined adequacy to mean that funds exist
in amounts equivalent to or exceeding the anticipated expenditures during a period of the next
five subsequent fiscal years. The Authority annually makes deposits to replacement reserves for
funding future planned expenditures. These reserves allow the Authority to establish and project
an orderly increase in tipping fees to prepare for future expenses along with annual operating
costs. All funds have been determined to be adequate to address industry costs and planning, thus
allowing the reserve funds to reflect future anticipated costs over the next five years.

Major Initiatives and Accomplishments for FY 2024

e During the year, the Roanoke Valley Resources Authority maintained financial and reserve
policies providing for the establishment of and the planned funding level of maintenance and
improvement reserve accounts for planned expenditures over a short and long-term planning
period.

e The Authority continues to maintain and own sufficient land to provide long-term disposal
capacity for its members in excess of 100 years which will be developed in phases or cells.
The long-term disposal capacity provides the Authority with the flexibility it needs to properly
evaluate emerging solid waste technologies and to allow sufficient timing to properly fund and
to ultimately transition to one or more of these technologies if feasible.

e Since its inception, the Authority has developed seven landfill cells in seven construction
phases to-date. Construction of Phase VI began in FY'17, was completed in FY'18, became
operational in FY'19, and remained operational through FY’24. Construction of Phase VIl was
initiated in FY’23 and completed and became operational in FY’24. Other than the initial
Phase I, all funding associated with the construction of Phases II-VIl has been cash-funded



through an established and dedicated reserve account which continues to receive regular
contributions from the Authority's tipping fees to cash-fund subsequent cell developments.

Portions of the Smith Gap Landfill are nearing final construction grade and in accordance with
the Authority's permit, are in the process of being closed. The Authority initiated the closure
construction for seven acres of filled cells in FY'17 and subsequently completed this
construction in FY'18. The closure of this area enabled the Authority to install additional gas
collection wells completed in FY'20. All funding associated with closure construction has been
cash-funded through an established and dedicated reserve account which continues to receive
regular contributions from the Authority's tipping fees to cash-fund subsequent cell closures.

As part of the original closure plan for the Smith Gap Landfill, the Authority installed an active
gas collection and control system (GCCS) that began operations in April 2011. All funding for
the closure plan, including the GCCS, is funded through an established reserve account which
continues to receive regular contributions from tipping fees that will continue to fund
subsequent cell closure costs. The Authority had no regulatory obligation to install and operate
a GCCS until FY 2019. Because it was under no regulatory obligation to install and operate a
GCCS, the Authority became a registered member of the California Climate Action Registry
(CARs) which qualified the Authority's destruction of greenhouse gases for emission credits
which were sold on the open market to help offset the initial cost of installing the GCCS.
Collectively, the Authority generated and sold $347,230 in emissions credits. Although no
longer eligible to sell emission credits, the GCCS installed and operated by the Authority
enabled the Authority to solicit proposals for the ongoing beneficial use of the landfill gas it
collects. The Authority solicited proposals in FY’22 and entered into a contractual agreement
with BP/Archea in FY’23 to develop a renewable natural gas (RNG) project which will provide
additional revenues and simultaneously relieve the Authority of capital and operating costs
associated with the ongoing operations of this GCCS. The new RNG project is projected to
come online by FY’25.

The Authority issued $20M in financing proceeds in FY'16 & FY'17 through private bank
financing and $10M in additional financing proceeds through the Virginia Resource Authority
(VRA) in FY’21. The 20-yr. debt was issued in association with the Authority's "Facilities
Modifications and Improvements Program” ("Program”) that includes five distinct projects:
the Connector Road Project; the Salem Transfer Station Project; the Tinker Creek Transfer
Station Project; the Smith Gap Regional Landfill Project; and the Rail Corridor Conversion
Project. The Authority initiated its VRA payments in FY’22 and completed its seventh full year
of private bank debt service payments in FY’24.

The Connector Road and Spur Road Projects have been completed and together form the
Authority’s “Transportation Corridor.” The Corridor now serves as the primary delivery system
route for tractor trailers to access the Authority's Smith Gap Landfill directly from the
interstate (I-81) in lieu of using the public road system. The Corridor provides safe, efficient
and effective routing for the Authority's service provider via tractor trailer hauled solid waste.
It also enables the Authority to entertain the fullest use of one of its most valuable assets, the
Smith Gap Landfill. The Authority may now expand its potential customer base which would
increase landfill tonnages and associated revenues with minimal operating costs increases in
order to maximize its economies of scale. The Authority solicited, received, and awarded
contracts for the direct-delivery of an additional 100,000+ tons of commercially generated
MSW to the Smith Gap Landfill. Direct deliveries of additional commercial waste began in
FY’22, increased to 52,000 tons in FY’23 and to 59,000 tons in FY’24. Further tonnage increase
is anticipated in FY’25.



e The Salem Transfer Station (STS) Project, Phase |, constructed two, new top-load hoppers to
ultimately replace two compactor units. This conversion provided a more efficient load-out of
solid waste into walking floor trailers that will be hauled by tractors, directly to the Authority's
Smith Gap Landfill avoiding the previous operations’ double/triple-handling of its wastes.
Additionally, truck deliveries would be a shorter distance to the landfill saving additional
operating costs. Phase | construction was initiated in FY'17 and was completed in FY'18. The
Authority continues to evaluate its options to complete Phase Il of this project which would
include constructing a new entrance at the site; constructing a new scalehouse and residential
service area; and rerouting traffic for additional vehicle queuing space and improved ingress
and egress.

e |n FY22, the Authority authorized a new five-year transportation contract with Thompson
Trucking, effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027. The second year of the transportation
contract was completed in FY’24. The contract provides the Authority with the means to
effectively and efficiently transport the solid waste it collects at its two transfer stations to
the SGLF with minimal capital outlay.

e In FY’24, the Authority initiated a leachate load out project to enhance the operation of
leachate removal at SGLF. The improved facility is projected to be complete in FY’25.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to RVRA for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. This was the fourteenth
consecutive year that the Authority received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized annual comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
annual comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

We would like to express our appreciation and gratitude to the personnel at the Authority and in
the Department of Finance and Management Services at the County of Roanoke for their dedication
and support in producing this report. Appreciation is also extended to the Authority’s Board of
Directors whose continuing leadership and support is essential to the financial health of the
Authority.

JN L XMW
Jonathan A. Lanfiord

Laurie Gearheart
Chief Executive Officer Treasurer



P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Virginia

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Chitogfo. P Morniet

Executive Director/CEO



Yoo saljljioed

(¥) | O3

(6) I OAN

19dQ ‘dinb3 "ig

Josiniadng “1adQ

S1S
Jabeue|\ suonesadp

(6) I OAN

19dQ "dinb3 "ig

Josiniadng “1adQ

S101
Jabeue|\ suonesadp

(6) 11 03N
18dQ "dinb3 g

Josiniadng “1adp

4719s
Jabeue|\ suonesadp

Jabeuen
aoueul

SBOALIBS |BoIUYOD |
suonelsadQ Jo Joyoalg

S92IAIBS plol

suoljeladQ Jo Joyoauq

Jojeuiploo)

dAljeJisIuIWpPY

(€) uepuapy s|eos

Josiniadng “1adp

S9[e0g

Jabeue|\ suonesadQ

Jabeuey
ssauisng

J92IJO 9ANISXT JAIUD

slo)oali(] 1o pieog

VZ.Ad - LdVHO TTVNOILVZINVOYO VAN
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RoBiNsON, FARMER, Cox AssociaTes, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

CPAs | CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the Board
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Roanoke, Virginia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, as of June 30,
2024, and the changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards,
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Roanoke Valley Resource
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Governmental Auditing Standards, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and
Commissions will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governmental Auditing
Standards, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and schedules related to pension and OPEB funding be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

-10-



Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 23,
2024, on our consideration of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

‘?Zyo’&/rw- ) %wm, (o Mrsociake.

Blacksburg, Virginia
September 23, 2024
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Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

The management discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial
statements of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (the Authority) for the year ended
June 30, 2024. The MD&A represents management’s examination and analysis of the
Authority’s financial condition and performance and should be read in conjunction with the
Authority’s basic financial statements which immediately follow this section.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board in their Statement No. 34 Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments (GASB 34).

Financial Highlights

e The total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2024 by $4,137,906 (Net
Position). Of this amount, $(8,268,460) is classified as unrestricted net position,
indicating that no funds were available for discretionary purposes.

e During the year, the Authority’s total revenues were $1,320,628 more than the
$16,162,519 of expenses.

e The Authority had outstanding revenue bonds of $22,287,696 (exclusive of unamortized
premiums) and notes payable of $407,956 at June 30, 2024.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The Authority’s financial report includes three financial statements: the Statement of Net
Position; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and the
Statement of Cash Flows. These statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The financial statements provide information about the Authority as a whole using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is the method used by most private-sector enterprises.
In addition to the basic financial statements, the report includes Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements and Required Supplemental Information.

e The Statement of Net Position reports assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows and the difference between them. The entire equity section is
combined to report total Net Position and displayed in three broad components - net
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.

e The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present the results
of the business activities over the course of the fiscal year and information about how
the Net Position changed during the year. Revenues and expenses are categorized as
either operating or non-operating based upon definitions provided by GASB’s 33 and 34.
Operating revenue consists of tipping fees, recycling fees, mulch revenue, and other
miscellaneous fees. Nonoperating revenues consist of net increase in fair value of
investments, interest income, gains on disposals of property and equipment, and
miscellaneous income.

One of the main goals of these two statements is to report the Authority’s net position and
changes that affected net position during the fiscal year. The change in the Authority’s net

12-



position is one way to measure the Authority’s financial health, or financial position.
Increases and decreases in net position are indicators of whether the Authority’s financial
health is improving or deteriorating. These statements allow readers to answer the question:
“Is the Authority’s financial position, as a whole, better or worse as a result of the year’s
activities?” As noted in the financial statements, the Authority’s financial condition
improved by $1,320,628 during the fiscal year. This increase was largely due to an increase
in charges for services and a reduction in the estimated landfill closure and post-closure
monitoring estimate.

e The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting
from operational, capital and related financing, and investing activities. This statement
presents cash receipts and cash disbursement information without consideration of the
earning event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes to the basic financial statements
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the basic financial statements. The notes present information about the Authority’s
accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any.

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole

The following comparative condensed Statement of Net Position provides an analysis of the
change in financial position from the previous fiscal year.

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed Summary of Net Position:

FY 2024 FY 2023

Current and other assets S 11,787,848 ) 18,514,750
Capital assets, net 36,119,396 30,269,356

Total assets 47,907,244 48,784,106
Deferred outflows of resources 545,121 593,699
Current liabilities 2,406,267 2,854,948
Noncurrent liabilities 41,511,176 43,005,896

Total liabilities 43,917,443 45,860,844
Deferred inflows of resources 397,016 699,683
Net investment in capital assets 12,406,366 5,691,553
Unrestricted (deficit) (8,268,460) (2,874,275)
Total net position S 4,137,906 S 2,817,278

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s
financial position. In the case of the Authority, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceed liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $4,137,906 at the close of fiscal year
2024. This is an increase from last year’s Net Position by $1,320,628.



A portion of the Authority’s Net Position, 299.82%, reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g. land, buildings, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that are outstanding. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to
customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The Authority’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, if applicable, and it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay any debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the Authority’s Net Position, (199.82)%, represents resources that are not
subject to restrictions on how they may be used. A negative balance indicates that no funds
were available for discretionary purposes.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The following table shows the revenue and expenses of the Authority:

FY 2024 FY 2023
Revenues
Charges for services S 16,969,470 S 15,655,286
Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest income 487,567 333,864
Gain on sale of capital assets 26,110 107,951
Total revenues 17,483,147 16,097,101
Expenses
Operating expense
Salaries and benefits (3,383,784) (3,138,793)
Landfill closure costs 428,245 (1,941,868)
Other operating expenses (9,032,155) (8,302,563)
Depreciation (3,612,378) (3,514,695)
Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense (562,447) (586,115)

Total expenses

(16,162,519)

(17,484,034)

Change in net position 1,320,628 (1,386,933)
Total net position at beginning of year 2,817,278 4,204,211
Total net position at end of year S 4,137,906 S 2,817,278

The Authority’s total revenues increased over the prior year by 8.61% to $17,483,147 due
to increased commercial tipping tonnage revenues. Tipping fee collections were 8.44%
higher than the prior year. Interest income increased by $153,703 as a result of higher
investment yields. The expenses for all programs and services decreased by 7.56% in FY
2024, primarily due to decreased landfill closure costs.

Approximately 96.60% of the Authority’s Fiscal Year 2024 revenue is from operating revenue

consisting of tipping fees and recycling income; 0.46% is miscellaneous consisting primarily
of mulch sales and insurance recoveries; 2.79% is from non-operating revenue consisting of
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interest income; and 0.15% from proceeds provided by the sale of assets. Operational
expenses for FY 2024 account for 96.52% of total expenses, with the remaining 3.48% of
expenses from interest expense.

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2024, the Authority had invested $36,119,396, net of accumulated
depreciation, in a variety of capital assets including land, landfill development costs,
buildings, and equipment. The Authority’s investment in capital assets for the current
year was $10,346,554. The majority of this investment was composed of the following:

e (1) Capital Project Completion (Smith Gap Landfill Phase VIl Expansion)
e (1) Capital Project Completion (Smith Gap Scales)

(5) Heavy equipment purchases ((1) 2024 Titan Trailer, (1) Ford Truck, (1) Ford
Explorer, (1) Kawasaki Ventrac Tractor, (1) Volvo EC350E Crawler Excavator,
e and (1) Landfill Compactor)
e (1) Tinker Creek Transfer Station Renovations
e (1) Salem Transfer Station Renovations

Included in this year’s investment total is construction in progress related to the
construction of the Leachate Load Out ($34,783). Disposals in the current year totaled
$76,359 and include a 2017 GMC Yukon and a 2016 Dodge Durango.

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 in the notes
to the basic financial statements. Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation are
illustrated in the following table:

FY 2024 FY 2023
Land S 5,558,682 S 5,558,682
Landfill and Corridor Access 41,740,596 32,955,965
Transfer Station 13,638,691 13,395,786
Equipment 18,066,941 16,824,282
Construction in progress 34,783 918,919
Subtotal 79,039,693 69,653,634
Accumulated depreciation (42,920,297) (39,384,278)
Totals S 36,119,396 S 30,269,356

Long -Term Debt

At June 30, 2024, the Authority had $22,287,696 of bonded debt issues outstanding. This
debt was used to support the development of improved long-term, operational efficiencies
due to the 2017 addition of the City of Salem as a member of the Authority as well as to
convert the Authority’s operations from the use of a rail-haul transportation system to a
tractor-trailer trucking transportation system. Additional information related to long - term
liabilities can be found in Note 4 in the notes to the basic financial statements.
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Factors Influencing Future Budgets

Key factors that are expected to impact future budgets include:

Ability to provide competitive tipping fees and improved economies of scale with direct
deliveries of commercial waste to landfill
Improved operational efficiencies and new revenue opportunities resulting from the
completion of the Transportation Corridor project
Continued uncertainty regarding the economy
Projected increases in health insurance premiums and retirement contribution rates
assessed by the Virginia Retirement System
Expansion of the open landfill
Estimated landfill closure and post-closure costs
Renewal and replacement needs; costs of plant and equipment
Closed landfill groundwater monitoring and remediation costs
Interest rates
Issuance of debt
Energy and fuel costs
Regulatory changes
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, potential
investors and creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to
demonstrate accountability for the resources it receives. If you have questions about this
report or need additional financial information, contact the Chief Executive Officer,
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, 1020 Hollins Road, N.E., Roanoke, VA 24012, telephone
(540-857-5050), or visit the Authority’s web site at www.rvra.net.
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Exhibit 1

Page 1 of 2
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2024
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,746,441
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 1) 269,707
Cash held with others (note 1) 78,705
Investments (note 2) 1,212,580
Accounts receivable 1,588,953
Interest receivable 8,734
Inventory 70,593
Total current assets 10,975,713
Noncurrent assets:
Investments (note 2) 812,135
Non-depreciable capital assets (note 3) 5,593,465
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (note 3) 30,525,931
Total noncurrent assets 36,931,531
Total assets 47,907,244
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items (note 5) 503,151
OPEB related items (note 6, 7 and 8) 41,970
Total deferred outflows of resources 545,121

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 1

Page 2 of 2
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2024
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Vouchers payable 386,366
Construction and retainage payables 5,431
Accrued payroll 52,961
Accrued interest 201,039
Compensated absences, current portion (note 4) 97,650
Net OPEB liabilities, current portion (notes 4, 6, 7 and 8) 17,272
Accrued landfill closure, current portion (notes 4 and 9) 232,598
Note payable (note 4) 53,170
Revenue bonds payable (note 4) 1,359,780
Total current liabilities 2,406,267
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences, net of current portion (note 4) 201,874
Net OPEB liabilities, net of current portion (notes 4, 6, 7 and 8) 293,581
Net pension liability (notes 4 and 5) 1,395,193
Accrued landfill closure, net of current portion (notes 4 and 9) 17,056,172
Note payable, net of current portion (note 4) 354,786
Revenue bonds payable, net of current portion (note 4) 22,209,570
Total noncurrent liabilities 41,511,176
Total liabilities 43,917,443
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items (note 5) 301,984
OPEB related items (note 6, 7 and 8) 95,032
Total deferred inflows of resources 397,016
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 12,406,366
Unrestricted (deficit) (8,268,460)
Total net position 4,137,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 2

ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES

Tipping fees 16,832,583
Recycling revenue 56,463
Mulch revenue 44,880
Miscellaneous fees 35,544
Total operating revenues 16,969,470
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 3,383,784
Landfill closure and post closure costs (note 9) (428,245)
Other operating expenses 9,032,155
Depreciation 3,612,378
Total operating expenses 15,600,072
Operating income (loss) 1,369,398
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 487,567
Interest expense (562,447)
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 26,110
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (48,770)
Change in net position 1,320,628
Total net position, beginning of year 2,817,278
Total net position, end of year 4,137,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Exhibit 3

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase and construction of capital assets
Issuance of note payable
Proceeds from sales of capital assets
Principal paid on locality compensation payments
Principal paid on note payable
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Interest paid on locality compensation payments
Interest paid on revenue bonds
Interest paid on note payable
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest income
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of investments
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year, including restricted amounts
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, including restricted amounts

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Deferred outflows of resources
Vouchers payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Landfill closure liability
Net OPEB liabilities
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

16,863,781
(9,096,513)
(3,566,205)

4,201,063

(9,722,820)
417,246
26,110
(189,981)
(9,290)
(1,158,254)
(2,033)
(742,293)
(5,070)

(11,386,385)

491,365
1,278,590

1,769,955

(5,415,367)

13,510,220

8,094,853

1,369,398

3,612,378

(105,689)
134,836
48,578
(65,423)
6,387
(3,023)
(562,016)
19,206
49,098
(302,667)

4,201,063

Capital asset additions are net of accounts payable of $265,833 from the prior year and accounts payable of $5,431 in the

current year.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Description of Entity

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (the Authority) was established on October 23, 1991 as a
tax exempt political subdivision within the Commonwealth of Virginia to acquire and construct a
regional sanitary landfill and waste collection and transfer station with related treatment
facilities. The charter members are the City of Roanoke, County of Roanoke (the County) and the
Town of Vinton (the Town). The City of Salem joined the Authority on July 1, 2016.

Prior to October 23, 1991, the operations of the Authority were accounted for as an enterprise
fund of the County of Roanoke. As of October 23, 1991, under agreement between the City of
Roanoke, the County and the Town, the County transferred all existing assets and liabilities to
the Authority. The Authority assumed ownership and operational control of Salem’s transfer
station on November 1, 2016.

Under terms of an agreement with the Roanoke Valley Solid Waste Management Board (the
Management Board), certain assets and liabilities were transferred to the Authority, effective
October 1, 1993. The terms of the agreement call for the Authority to monitor an old landfill site
of the Roanoke Valley Regional Solid Waste Management Board during the postclosure care
period.

B. Basis of Accounting

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority operates as an enterprise fund, and its accounts are
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses are recorded as liabilities when incurred, without regard to receipt
or payment of cash. The Authority accrues revenue for services rendered but not yet billed at
the end of the fiscal year.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the Authority’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses include the
cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

C.

E.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows or Resources:

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)
until then. The Authority has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is
comprised of certain items related to pension and OPEB. For more detailed information on these
items, reference the related notes.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The Authority has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this
category. Certain items related to pension and OPEB are reported as deferred inflows of
resources. For more detailed information on these items, reference the related notes.

Basic Financial Statements

Since the Authority is only engaged in business-type activities, it is required to present only the
financial statements required for enterprise funds. For the Authority, the basic financial
statements and required supplementary information consist of:

« Management’s Discussion and Analysis

» Enterprise fund financial statements

Statement of Net Position

- Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements

« Required Supplementary Information
- Schedules of OPEB and Pension related items

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

E.

Capital Assets (Continued)

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to expense as incurred, while major
renewals and replacements are capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of a capital asset, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated from the related
accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in income.

The Authority defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000
and an estimated useful life of at least one year. Assets are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. Equipment, furniture and fixtures are depreciated over three to ten years.
Buildings and structures, including the transfer station, are depreciated over 35 years. Landfill
and corridor access assets are depreciated over fifteen to thirty-five years. Landfill cell
development costs are depreciated over the expected life of the cell.

. Interest on Indebtedness

Interest costs of the Authority are treated as nonoperating expenses.

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of less than one year when purchased, non-negotiable certificates of
deposit, and other nonparticipating investments and external investment pools are stated at
amortized cost or at fair value. Investments with a maturity greater than one year when
purchased are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
investment in an orderly transaction at year end.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

A budget is prepared for informational, fiscal planning purposes, and to provide the basis for
setting user rates. None of the participating entities are required to approve the budget. The
budget is adopted as a planning document and is not a legal control on expenses.

. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Primary
customers consist of the City of Roanoke, City of Salem, County of Roanoke, Town of Vinton and
their respective citizens, and local businesses. Management does not feel that an allowance of
balances is necessary so the direct write off method of accounting for uncollectible accounts is
used.

Inventory

Inventory is recorded using the first-in, first-out method (FIFO) and is valued at cost. Inventory
consists of parts and supplies utilized in the daily operation of the landfill.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 1— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

L. Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing its financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

M. Net Position

The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources is called net position. Net position is comprised of three components: net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

e Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other debt that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included
in this component of net position.

e Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when
constraints are placed on asset use either by external parties or by law through
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that does not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories.

Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.
restricted bond and grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted net position to have
been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

N. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position at face value,
net of any applicable premiums and discounts.

0. Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences consists of unpaid accumulated vacation and sick leave
balances. The liability is based on the sick leave and the vacation leave accumulated at June 30.
Limited vacation and sick leave may be accumulated until retirement or termination.
Accumulated sick leave is paid at a fixed daily rate and accumulated vacation is paid at the
employee’s current wage upon retirement or termination.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

P.

Accrued Landfill Closure

Accrued landfill closure represents the estimated liability for closure and postclosure costs for
the landfill sites. This includes the cost of any equipment and facilities to be installed near or
after the date of landfill closure for purposes of closure, the cost of landfill capping, and the cost
of monitoring and maintaining the sites during the postclosure period. A total estimate of these
expenses is made and updated on a periodic basis and expenses are charged to current period
usage of the landfill site. Current cost of landfill closure and postclosure care is an estimate and
subject to change resulting from inflation, deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws or
regulations.

Funding Requirements

The Cities, County and the Town are responsible for their pro rata share, based on population, of
any year-end operating deficit or capital expenditures, if additional funding is required. The
Authority is responsible for paying all outstanding debt.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Authority’s Retirement Plan and the additions to/deductions from the
Authority’s Retirement Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as
they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net VRS related OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the VRS GLI OPEB Plan and the additions to/deductions from the VRS
OPEB Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported
by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Restricted Assets

Deposits totaling $269,707 have been restricted by applicable bond agreements for the
construction of landfill cell(s), an access road and related items.

Cash Held with Others

Deposits with Roanoke County of $78,705 have been recorded in the accompanying financial
statements as cash held with others. These deposits were required to assure the timely
construction and completion of improvements in accordance with approved plans. Such funds
will be returned upon the successful completion of current construction projects.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 2—Deposits and Investments:

Deposits - The County of Roanoke maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by
all County funds, component units and entities for which the County is the fiscal agent. The
Authority participates in this pool and at June 30, 2024, the carrying value of the Authority’s
deposits with banks and savings institutions was $7,746,441. Deposits with banks are covered by
Federal depository insurance and collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public
Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings
institutions holding public deposits in excess of the amount insured by the FDIC must pledge
collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board. Financial Institutions may choose
between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that choice, will pledge collateral
that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits. Accordingly, all deposits are
considered fully collateralized.

Investments - Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations of
the United States or agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political
subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development
(World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, “prime quality”
commercial paper that has received at least two of the following ratings: P-1 by Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc.; A-1 by Standard & Poor’s; or F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc. (Section 2.2-4502), bankers’
acceptances, repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP).

Information related to the County of Roanoke pooled account is presented in the audited financial
statements of the County of Roanoke and can be obtained from the Director of Finance and
Management Services, County of Roanoke, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300E, Roanoke, Virginia 24018;
telephone 540-772-2020 or by visiting the County’s web site at www.roanokecountyva.gov.

Custodial Credit Risk (Investments)

The Authority’s investment policy provides that securities purchased for the Authority shall be held
by the Authority Treasurer or by the Treasurer’s custodian. If held by a custodian, the securities
must be in the Authority’s name or in the custodian’s nhame and identifiable on the custodian’s books
as belonging to the Authority. Further, if held by a custodian, the custodian must be a third party,
not a counterparty (buyer or seller) to the transaction. At June 30, 2024, all of the Authority’s
investments were held in accordance with this policy.

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

The Authority’s investment policy for credit risk is consistent with the investments allowed by
statute as detailed above.

The Authority’s debt investments as of June 30, 2024 were rated by Standard & Poor’s and/or an
equivalent national rating organization and the ratings are presented below using the Standard &
Poor’s rating scale.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)

Credit Risk of Debt Securities (Continued)

Authority's Rated Debt Investments' Values

Fair Quality Ratings

Rated Debt Investments AAAmM Not rated

Roanoke County Treasurer's Investment Pool S - ) 2,024,715

State Non-arbitrage Pool (SNAP) 269,707 -
Total S 269,707 S 2,024,715

The Roanoke County Investment Pool is not rated; however, underlying investments in the pool are
rated. Those ratings along with additional information concerning the pool are presented in the
Roanoke County, Virginia Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, a copy of which may be requested
from: County of Roanoke, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300E, Roanoke, Virginia 24018; telephone 540-
772-2020 or by visiting the County’s web site at www.roanokecountyva.gov.

External Investment Pools

The value of the positions in the external investment pools is the same as the value of the pool
shares. As SNAP is not SEC registered, regulatory oversight of the pool rests with the Virginia State
Treasury. SNAP is an amortized cost basis portfolio. There are no withdrawal limitations or
restrictions imposed on participants in SNAP. As the Roanoke County Investment Pool is not SEC
registered, regulatory oversight of the pool rests with the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors. The
County of Roanoke does not impose any redemption restrictions on the Authority.

Interest Rate Risk

The Authority’s policy with regard to interest rate risk requires that all investments mature within
five years of their purchase date. The policy further requires maturity scheduling be timed to
anticipated cash flow needs. All funds shall be considered short-term except those reserved for
capital projects. Investment maturities presented below are based on the maturity dates for
individual investments held within the pool as allocated based on the Authority’s percentage of funds
invested in the pool.

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 1-5 Years
Roanoke County Investment Pool S 2,024,715 S 1,212,580 S 812,135
SNAP 269,707 269,707 -
Totals S 2,294,422 S 1,482,287 $ 812,135




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority has
measured fair value of the Roanoke County Investment Pool investments at the net asset value
(NAV).

Note 3—Capital Assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2023 Increases Decreases June 30, 2024
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 5,558,682 S - S - S 5,558,682
Construction in Progress 918,919 7,900,495 (8,784,631) 34,783
Total capital assets not being depreciated S 6,477,601 S 7,900,495 S (8,784,631) S 5,593,465
Capital assets being depreciated:
Landfill $ 32,955,965 S 8,784,631 S - S 41,740,596
Transfer Station (Building and Structure) 13,395,786 242,905 - 13,638,691
Equipment 16,824,282 1,319,018 (76,359) 18,066,941
Total capital assets being depreciated S 63,176,033 $10,346,554 S  (76,359) S 73,446,228
Accumulated depreciation:
Landfill S (18,154,199) S (1,871,571) § S (20,025,770)
Transfer Station (Building and Structure) (7,217,552) (404,976) (7,622,528)
Equipment (14,012,527)  (1,335,831) 76,359 (15,271,999)
Total accumulated depreciation S (39,384,278) S (3,612,378) S 76,359 S (42,920,297)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net S 23,791,755 $ 6,734,176 S $ 30,525,931
Total capital assets, net S 30,269,356 $14,634,671 $(8,784,631) S 36,119,396
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Note 4—Long-Term Liabilities:

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year are as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 One Year
Direct Borrowings -
Revenue Bonds S 23,445,950 $ - $ (1,158,254) § 22,287,696 $ 1,195,994
Bond premium 1,457,403 - (175,749) 1,281,654 163,786
Locality Compensation Payments 189,981 - (189,981) - -
Note payable - 417,246 (9,290) 407,956 53,170
Compensated Absences 302,547 109,977 (113,000) 299,524 97,650
Accrued Landfill Closure
and Postclosure (Note 9) 17,850,786 225,167 (787,183) 17,288,770 232,598
Net OPEB Liabilities 291,647 74,748 (55,542) 310,853 17,272
Net Pension Liability 1,346,095 1,136,839 (1,087,741) 1,395,193 -
)

S 44,884,409 S 1,963,977 $ (3,576,740) $ 43,271,646 $ 1,760,470

On March 28, 2024, the Authority established an irrevocable standby letter of credit with Truist Bank
in the amount of $13,906,372 to provide partial financial assurance for the closure and post-closure
monitoring of landfills and transfer stations operated by the Authority. The standby letter of credit
does not carry an interest rate, which will be determined if funds are drawn against same. To date,
no amounts have been drawn on this letter of credit. The standby letter of credit expires on January
1, 2025.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 4—Long-Term Liabilities: (Continued)

Details of the Authority's outstanding long-term liabilities at June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Final Amount of Amount
Interest Installment Maturity Original Balance Due Within
Type Rates Amounts Date Issue Due One Year
Direct Borrowings
Revenue Bonds
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2017A 2.50% $42,925-$69,025 (a+) 7/15/2037  $ 1,100,000 S 775,717 $ 51,135
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2017B 2.65%(v) $340,000-$565,000 (a+)  7/15/2037 8,900,000 6,710,000 400,000
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2016 2.50% $390,226-$627,504 (a+)  11/1/2036 10,000,000 7,051,979 464,859
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2021 4.125-5.125% $250,000-$610,000 (a+) 10/1/2041 8,250,000 7,750,000 280,000
Total Revenue Bonds $ 22,287,696 $ 1,195,994
Add: Unamortized premium on
VRA 2021 Spring Pool n/a 10/1/2041 1,837,620 $ 1,281,654 S 163,786
Total Revenue Bonds and Unamortized Premium $ 23,569,350 $ 1,359,780
Note payable 7.331% $4,631-$7,137 (m) 5/10/2030 417,246 S 407,956 $ 53,170
Other Long-Term Obligations:
Compensated absences S 299,524 S 97,650
Accrued landfill closure liability 17,288,770 232,598
Net OPEB liabilities 310,853 17,272
Net pension liability 1,395,193
Total Other Long-Term Obligations $ 19,294,340 S 347,520
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 43,271,646 $ 1,760,470

(a+)-annual principalinstallments shown, does not include semi-annualinterest instalments

(v) - Interest rate to be adjusted on July 15, 2027 to each five year Treasury rate plus 0.25%

(m) - monthly principalinstallments shown, does not include monthly interest instalments
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Note 4—Long-Term Liabilities: (Continued)

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and the related interest are as follows:

Year Ending Direct Borrowings

June 30 Principal Interest
2025 S 1,249,164 $ 730,932
2026 1,291,272 690,666
2027 1,339,383 646,244
2028 1,388,192 599,897
2029 1,432,732 551,655

2030-2034 7,551,490 2,021,786

2035-2039 6,688,419 827,651

2040-2042 1,755,000 110,653
Total S 22,695,652 $ 6,179,484

Note 5—Pension Plan:

Plan Description

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the Authority are automatically covered by the
Roanoke County Pension Plan. This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan administered by the
Virginia Retirement System (the System) along with plans for other employer groups in the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are
employed and for which they and their employer pays contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to
purchase prior service, based on specific criteria as defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended.
Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service, active military service,
certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service.

Benefit Structures

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees - Plan 1, Plan 2 and
Hybrid. Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria, as detailed below.

a. Employees with a membership date July 1, 2010, vested as of January 1, 2013, and have not
taken a refund, are covered under Plan 1, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty
employees are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least
5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit. Non-hazardous duty
employees may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 55 with at least 5 years of
service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Benefit Structures (Continued)

b. Employees with a membership date from July 1, 2010 to December 31, 2013, that have not
taken a refund or employees with a membership date prior to July 1, 2010 and not vested
before January 1, 2013, are covered under Plan 2, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty
employees are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security
retirement age with at least 5 years of service credit or when the sum of their age plus
service credit equals 90. Non-hazardous duty employees may retire with a reduced benefit as
early as age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit.

c. Non-hazardous duty employees with a membership date on or after January 1, 2014 are
covered by the Hybrid Plan combining the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined
contribution plan. Plan 1 and Plan 2 members also had the option of opting into this plan
during the election window held January 1 - April 30, 2014 with an effective date of July 1,
2014. Employees covered by this plan are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their
normal social security retirement age with at least 5 years of service credit, or when the sum
of their age plus service credit equals 90. Employees may retire with a reduced benefit as
early as age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit. For the defined contribution
component, members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject
to restrictions.

Average Final Compensation and Service Retirement Multiplier

The VRS defined benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a
percentage of the employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the employee’s total service
credit. Under Plan 1, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 36 consecutive
months of highest compensation and the multiplier is 1.70% for non-hazardous duty employees.

Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 consecutive months of
highest compensation and the retirement multiplier is 1.65% for non-hazardous duty employees.
Under the Hybrid Plan, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 consecutive
months of highest compensation and the multiplier is 1.00%. For members who opted into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to
calculate the retirement benefit for service credited in those plans.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement and Death and Disability Benefits

Retirees with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least 20 years of service credit
are eligible for an annual COLA beginning July 1 after one full calendar year from the retirement
date. Retirees with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of service credit are eligible
for an annual COLA beginning on July 1 after one calendar year following the unreduced retirement
eligibility date. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%. Under Plan 2 and the Hybrid Plan, the
COLA cannot exceed 3.00%. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the
Code of Virginia, as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
General Assembly of Virginia.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia,
as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by
the Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation
toward their retirement.

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the
year ended June 30, 2024 was 15.29% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an
actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the Authority were $326,821 and $305,015
for the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, respectively.

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported a liability of $1,395,193 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023. The
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation performed as of June 30, 2022 and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30,
2023. The Authority’s proportionate share of same was calculated using the average creditable
compensation as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 as a basis for allocation. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the
Authority’s proportion was 3.3005% and 3.5672%, respectively.

Actuarial Assumptions - General Employees

The total pension liability for employees in the Authority’s Retirement Plan was based on an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the
following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2023.

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases, including inflation 3.50% - 5.35%
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment

expenses, including inflation

Mortality Rates
All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related

Pre-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for
males; 105% of rates for females set forward 2 years

Post-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected generationally; 110% of
rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years

-33-
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - General Employees (Continued)

Mortality Rates (Continued)
Post-Disablement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for
males set back 3 years; 90% of rates for females set back 3 years

Beneficiaries and Survivors:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally; 110%
of rates for males and females set forward 2 years

Mortality Improvements:
Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the
MP-2020 rates

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on the VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2021.
Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as
follows:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post- Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For

retirement healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set

separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability No change

Discount Rate No change
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Weighted

Arithmetic Average

Long-term Long-term

Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation  Rate of Return  Rate of Return*
Public Equity 34.00% 6.14% 2.09%
Fixed Income 15.00% 2.56% 0.38%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.60% 0.78%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.02% 0.70%
Private Equity 16.00% 9.17% 1.47%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 4.00% 4.50% 0.18%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 2.00% 7.18% 0.14%
Cash 1.00% 1.20% 0.01%
Total 100.00% 5.75%
Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return** 8.25%

* The above allocation provides a one-year expected return of 8.25%. However, one-year returns do
not take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term
expected return for the System, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under
various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that
ultimately provide a median return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

**On June 15, 2023, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75% which was roughly at

the 45% percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time,
providing a median return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per
the VRS Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding
policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by
the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by
the General Assembly for state and teacher employer contributions; the Authority was also provided
with an opportunity to use an alternative employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30,
2023, the alternate rate was the employer contribution rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the
actuarially determined employer contribution rate from the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuations,
whichever was greater. From July 1, 2023 on, participating employers are assumed to contribute
100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Authority Net Pension Liability (Asset) S 2,853,881 S 1,395,193 S 200,673

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized pension expense of $269,943. Since
there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension
expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between
employer contributions and the proportionate share of employer contributions.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions (Continued)

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 124,240 S 34,802
Changes in assumptions 52,090
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 121,262
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - 145,920
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 326,821
Totals S 503,151 S 301,984

$326,821 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the
Authority’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the Net Pension Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2025 S (67,506)
2026 (191,749)
2027 129,044
2028 4,557

Pension Plan Data

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately
issued VRS 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2023 VRS
Annual Report may be downloaded from the VRS website at
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2023-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s
Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.
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Note 6—Aggregate Other Postemployment Benefits Information:

The following is a summary of deferred outflows, deferred inflows, net other postemployment
benefits liabilities, and other postemployment benefits expense for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Deferred Deferred Net OPEB OPEB
Outflows Inflows Liabilities Expense
Authority Stand-Alone Plan S 12,644 S 78,854 §$ 209,211 § (7,161)
VRS OPEB Plan-Group Life Insurance Plan 29,326 16,178 101,642 5,066
Totals S 41,970 S 95,032 S 310,853 § (2,095)

Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits:

Plan Description

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 5, the Authority administers a single-employer
defined benefit healthcare plan, The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Postretirement Benefits
Plan. The Plan provides for participation by eligible retirees and their dependents in the health
insurance programs available to employees. The Plan does not issue publicly available financial
reports.

Benefits Provided

The Plan will provide retiring employees the option to continue health insurance offered by the
Authority. Employees are eligible for the program after ten (10) years of service to the Authority.
The benefits, employee contributions, and the employer contributions are governed by the
Authority’s Board and can be amended through Board action.

Plan Membership

At June 30, 2023 (measurement date), the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Total active employees with coverage 19
Total retiree with coverage 1
Total 20

Contributions

The Authority does not pre-fund benefits; therefore, no assets are accumulated in a trust fund. The
current funding policy is to pay benefits directly from general assets on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
funding requirements are established and may be amended by the Authority’s Board. The amount
paid by the Authority for OPEB as the benefits came due during the year ended June 30, 2024 was
$5,639.
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Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

Total OPEB Liability

The Authority’s total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. The total OPEB liability used
to calculate the total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2023.

Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following

actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise
specified:

Healthcare cost trend rate Starts at an initial rate of 8.00% decreasing to an ultimate rate of
4.50%.

Salary Increases 3.50% per annum

Discount Rate 4.13% per annum

Mortality rates were as follows:

e General Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully
generational using Scale MP-2021.

e Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Headcount Weighted Mortality Table
fully generational using Scale MP-2021.

e Disabled Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree Headcount Weighted Mortality
Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021.

The date of the most recent actuarial experience study for which significant assumptions were based
is not available.

The sole (and only significant) change to the actuarial assumptions since the valuation dated June
30, 2021 was an increase in the discount rate from 4.09% to 4.13%. That change was necessary to
updated the discount rate assumption based on the yield for 20-year-tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds as of June 30, 2023 (measurement date).
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Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

Discount Rate
The discount rate is 4.13% per annum.
Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability

Balances at June 30, 2022 S 185,735
Changes for the year:
Service cost 13,597
Interest 8,039
Differences between expected and actual experience 7,861
Changes of assumptions (382)
Contributions - employer (5,639)
Net changes S 23,476
Balances at June 30, 2023 S 209,211

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following amounts present the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(3.13%) or one percentage point higher (5.13%) than the current discount rate:

Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(3.13%) (4.13%) (5.13%)
S 218,676 S 209,211 S 199,641

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage
point lower (6.00% decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.50%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.50%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.00% decreasing to an (7.00% decreasing to an (8.00% decreasing to an
utlimate rate of 3.50%) utlimate rate of 4.50%) utlimate rate of 5.50%)
S 190,568 S 209,211 S 230,153
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Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $(7,161).
At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resouces Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 5,896 S 63,627
Changes in assumptions 1,109 15,227
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 5,639 -
Total S 12,644 S 78,854

$5,639 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from the Authority’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total
OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB expense in future reporting
periods as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2025 S  (55,872)
2026 (17,846)
2027 1,869

Additional disclosures on changes in total OPEB liability, related ratios, and employer contributions
can be found in the required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements.

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan):

Plan Description

The Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan was established pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of
Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or
may be amended. All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers, and
employees of participating political subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS GLI Plan upon
employment. This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan administered by the Virginia Retirement
System (the System), along with pensions and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the
Commonwealth of Virginia.
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Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Plan Description (Continued)

In addition to the Basic GLI benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for
themselves as well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional GLI Plan. For members
who elect the optional group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the
premiums. Employers deduct these premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to
the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully insured plan, it is not included as part of the GLI Plan
OPEB.

The specific information for GLI Program OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits described
below:

Eligible Employees

The GLI Plan was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers, and employees of political
subdivisions that elect the plan. Basic GLI coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends
for employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their
accumulated retirement member contributions and accrued interest.

Benefit Amounts

The GLI Plan is a defined benefit plan with several components. The natural death benefit is equal to
the employee’s covered compensation rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled. The
accidental death benefit is double the natural death benefit. In addition to basic natural and
accidental death benefits, the plan provides additional benefits provided under specific
circumstances that include the following: accidental dismemberment benefit, seatbelt benefit,
repatriation benefit, felonious assault benefit, and accelerated death benefit option. The benefit
amounts are subject to a reduction factor. The benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1
following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces by an additional 25% on each
subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value. For covered members with at least 30
years of service credit, the minimum benefit payable was set at $8,000 by statute in 2015. This will
be increased annually based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment calculation. The minimum
benefit adjusted for the COLA was $9,254 as of June 30, 2024.

Contributions

The contribution requirements for the GLI Plan are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code
of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and
school divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Plan was 1.34% of
covered employee compensation. This was allocated into an employee and an employer component
using a 60/40 split. The employee component was 0.80% (1.34% x 60%) and the employer component
was 0.54% (1.34% x 40%). Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution;
however, the employer must pay all of the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually
required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2024, was 0.54% of covered
employee compensation. This rate was the final approved General Assembly rate, which was based
on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The actuarially
determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of
benefits payable during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. Contributions to the GLI Plan from the entity were $11,566 and $10,314 for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Contributions (Continued)

In June 2023, the Commonwealth made a special contribution of approximately $10.1 million to the
Group Life Insurance Plan. This special payment was authorized by Chapter 2 of the Acts of Assembly
of 2022, Special Session |, as amended by Chapter 769, 2023 Acts of Assembly Reconvened Session,
and is classified as a special employer contribution. The entity did not record a proportionate share
in the financial statements.

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB

At June 30, 2024, the entity reported a liability of $101,642 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI
OPEB Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and the total GLI OPEB
liability used to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
performed as of June 30, 2022 and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2023. The
covered employer’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s
actuarially determined employer contributions to the GLI Plan for the year ended June 30, 2023
relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating
employers. At June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, the participating employer’s proportion was
0.00848% and 0.00880%, respectively.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the participating employer recognized GLI OPEB expense of
$5,066. Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of
the GLI OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.

At June 30, 2024, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the GLI OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 10,152 § 3,085
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on GLI OPEB plan investments - 4,085
Change in assumptions 2,173 7,042
Changes in proportionate share 5,435 1,966
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 11,566

Total S 29,326 S 16,178




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB (Continued)

$11,566 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the
employer’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the Net GLI OPEB Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be
recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2025 $  (356)
2026 (3,685)
2027 2,531
2028 1,386
2029 1,706

Actuarial Assumptions

The total GLI OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, using the
Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2023.
The assumptions include several employer groups as noted below. Salary increases and mortality
rates included herein are for relevant employer groups. Information for other groups can be
referenced in the VRS Annual Report.

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases, including inflation:
Locality - General employees 3.50%-5.35%

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of investment expenses,
including inflation

Mortality Rates - Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

Pre-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; males set
forward 2 years; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years

Post-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected ge0.4nerationally; 95% of
rates for males set forward 2 years; 95% of rates for females set forward 1 year



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
Mortality Rates - Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees (Continued)

Post-Disablement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates
for males set forward 3 years; 110% of rates for females set forward 2 years

Beneficiaries and Survivors:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally

Mortality Improvement Scale:
Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the
MP-2020 rates

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2021.
Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as
follows:

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post- Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For
retirement healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set
separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all
Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.
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Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

NET GLI OPEB Liability

The net OPEB liability (NOL) for the GLI Plan represents the plan’s total OPEB liability determined in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the
measurement date of June 30, 2023, NOL amounts for the GLI Plan is as follows (amounts expressed
in thousands):

GLI OPEB
Plan
Total GLI OPEB Liability S 3,907,052
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,707,739
GLI Net OPEB Liability (Asset) S 1,199,313
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total GLI OPEB Liability 69.30%

The total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net
position is reported in the System’s financial statements. The net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 74 in the System’s notes to the financial
statements and required supplementary information.

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.
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As of June 30, 2024 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on the System’s investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of System’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Weighted

Long-Term Arithmetic Average

Target Long-term Long-term

Asset Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation  Rate of Return  Rate of Return*
Public Equity 34.00% 6.14% 2.09%
Fixed Income 15.00% 2.56% 0.38%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.60% 0.78%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.20% 0.70%
Private Equity 16.00% 9.17% 1.47%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 4.009% 4.50% 0.18%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 2.00% 7.18% 0.14%
Cash 1.00% 1.20% 0.01%
Total 100.00% 5.75%
Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return** 8.25%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 8.25%. However, one-year returns do not take
into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected
return for the System, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various
economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately
provide a median return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

**On June 15, 2023, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75%, which was roughly at

the 45% percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time,
providing a median return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.
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Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made in
accordance with the VRS funding policy and at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution
rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees. Through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the rate
contributed by the entity for the GLI OPEB will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified
rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly which was 113% of the actuarially determined
contribution rate. From July 1, 2023 on, employers are assumed to contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of eligible employees.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Authority's proportionate
share of the GLI Plan
Net OPEB Liability S 150,665 S 101,642 S 62,006

GLI Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the GLI Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued
VRS 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2023 VRS Annual
Report may be downloaded from the VRS website at
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2023-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s
Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

Note 9—Accrued Landfill Closure:

The Authority currently has responsibility for closure and post-closure care related to two landfill
sites and two transfer stations. The landfills include the old landfill site, formerly owned by the
Roanoke Valley Regional Solid Waste Management Board, which closed in 1994 and the Smith Gap
landfill placed in service during 1994. The new landfill has a total estimated remaining life of
approximately 22.8 years, which is comprised of Phase I-VIl (constructed capacity) with a total
estimated remaining life of approximately 8.28 years and Phase VIII-IX (unconstructed capacity) with
a total estimated remaining life of approximately 14.52 years. State and Federal laws and regulations
require that the Authority place a final cover on its landfill(s) when closed and perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions for a minimum of thirty years after closure.
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Note 9—Accrued Landfill Closure: (Continued)

Closure costs will be paid as closure occurs and post-closure care costs will be paid only near or after
the date that the landfill(s) stop accepting waste. The Authority reports a portion of these closure
and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on the percentage of
landfill capacity used in existing cells. The total liability recorded at June 30, 2024, is $17,288,770
and includes $3,499,446 designated for the old landfill site (now closed); $13,316,942 designated for
the new Smith Gap landfill; and $472,382 for the transfer stations. Total closure and post-closure
cost for all opened landfill cells at Smith Gap is estimated at $16,983,218, of which 78.412% has been
recognized based on usage to date. As such, $3,666,337 or 21.588% of the total estimated liability
will be recognized in future periods as the usage percentage increases at the Smith Gap Landfill.
The Old Landfill and Transfer Station estimates are recorded at 100% of their total liability
estimates.

The Authority will periodically update these closure and post-closure cost estimates and, as
necessary, make revisions to reflect any significant changes in estimates due to inflation or
deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws and regulations.

Closure and post-closure care requirements are mandated under the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) rule, “Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria”, and are subject to periodic
revisions by the EPA.

Federal and state regulations require owners of municipal solid waste landfills to demonstrate
financial responsibility for closure care, post-closure care and corrective costs arising from the
operations of such facilities. The Authority has demonstrated financial assurance requirements for
closure and post-closure care by the issuance of an irrevocable standby letter of credit in
combination with the submission of a Local Government Financial Test through the Virginia
Department of Environmental Quality in accordance section 9VAC20-70 of the Virginia Administrative
Code.

Note 10—Commitments, Contingencies, and Other Information:

From time to time the Authority is involved in litigation in the normal course of operations. It is the
opinion of the Authority’s management that any adverse outcomes related to litigation would not
have a material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Authority as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2024.

Note 11—Arbitrage Rebate Compliance:

As of June 30, 2024 and for the year then ended, the Authority was not liable for any amounts due
under current rules governing arbitrage earnings.
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Note 12—Risk Management:

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and others; and natural disasters. The
Authority participates with other localities in the Virginia Municipal Group Self Insurance public
entity risk pool and the Virginia Association of Counties Risk Pool for certain coverage noted below.
Each member of these risk pools jointly and severally agrees to assume, pay and discharge any
liability. The Authority pays the risk pools contributions and assessments based upon classifications
and rates into designated cash reserve funds out of which expenses of the pools, claims and awards
are to be paid. In the event of a loss, deficit, or depletion of all available funds and/or excess
insurance, each pool may assess all members in the proportion to which the premium of each bears
to the total premiums of all members in the year in which such deficit occurs. The Authority carries
insurance coverage for all other risk of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in the
current or prior three fiscal years.

Worker’s Compensation - Worker’s Compensation Insurance is provided through the Virginia Risk Sharing
Association. During 2023-2024, the total premiums paid were $33,377. Benefits are those afforded
through the State of Virginia as outlined in the Code of Virginia Section 65.2-100; premiums are based
upon covered payroll, job rates and claims experience.

General Liability and Other - The Authority carries general liability, machinery, property and other
insurance through policies administered by the Virginia Risk Sharing Association. General liability and
business automobile have a $1,000,000 combined single limit. Machinery coverage and property
insurance are covered as per statement of values. Public officials’ liability with a $1,000,000 limit is
covered through a policy with the Commonwealth of Virginia. Total premiums paid for year ended June
30, 2024 were $102,108.

Healthcare - Healthcare insurance coverage is provided to Authority employees through Roanoke
County’s self-insured health insurance program. The Authority’s employees pay a monthly amount
based upon estimates from the claims processor that should cover administrative expenses, stop loss
insurance premiums, and claims. An excess coverage insurance policy covers each individual’s pooled
claims in excess of $200,000. The Authority has no claims payable as of June 30, 2024.

Note 13—Related Party Transactions:

The following table summarizes approximate tipping fees received and accounts receivable from
charter members as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Tipping Fees Accounts Receivable

2024 2024
City of Roanoke S 2,385,058 S 197,206
County of Roanoke 2,115,102 164,105
City of Salem 872,208 65,395
Town of Vinton 203,951 19,944
S 5,576,319 $ 446,650
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Note 14— Upcoming Pronouncements:

Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, updates the recognition and measurement guidance for
compensated absences. It aligns the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model
and amends certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023.

Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, provides users of government financial statements with
essential information about risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain
concentrations or constraints. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2024.

Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements, improves key components of the
financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is essential for
decision making and assessing a government’s accountability. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025.

Management is currently evaluating the impact these standards will have on the financial statements
when adopted.
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Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - Pension Plan

ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2023

Roanoke County, Virginia's Pension Plan (a cost-sharing multiple employer plan administered by the VRS)

Proportionate
Share of the NPL

Pension Plan's
Fiduciary Net

Proportion of as a Percentage of Position as a
the Net Pension Proportionate Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total
Date Liability (NPL) Share of the NPL Employee Payroll 3)/(4) Pension Liability
(1 ) (3) 4) (5) (6)
2023 3.3005% S 1,395,193 § 1,909,925 73.05% 87.27%
2022 3.5672% 1,346,095 1,913,347 70.35% 87.97%
2021 4.0387% 892,849 2,002,539 44.59% 92.71%
2020 3.9949% 2,311,725 2,188,818 105.62% 79.55%
2019 3.9322% 1,698,543 1,979,670 85.80% 83.96%
2018 3.80009% 1,282,039 1,860,564 68.91% 86.53%
2017 3.5259% 1,308,197 1,630,826 80.22% 84.76%
2016 2.8980% 1,324,942 1,262,032 104.98% 80.43%
2015 2.7704% 970,264 1,178,061 82.36% 84.31%
2014 2.7738% 923,522 1,117,882 82.61% 84.61%



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Employer Contributions - Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2024

Roanoke County, Virginia's Pension Plan (a cost-sharing multiple employer plan administered by the VRS)

Contributions in

Contributions

Relation to Contributions as a % of

Contractually Contractually Deficiency Employer's Covered

Required Required (Excess) Covered Payroll

Date Contribution Contribution (1) - (2) Payroll 2)/(4)

m* 2)* (3) “4) 5

2024 326,821 S 326,821 S 2,137,222 15.29%
2023 305,015 305,015 1,909,925 15.97%
2022 262,991 262,991 1,913,347 13.75%
2021 277,405 277,405 2,002,539 13.85%
2020 246,754 246,754 2,188,818 11.27%
2019 231,403 231,403 1,979,670 11.69%
2018 200,782 200,782 1,860,564 10.79%
2017 181,460 181,460 1,630,826 11.13%
2016 142,146 142,146 1,262,032 11.26%
2015 132,238 132,238 1,178,061 11.23%

* Excludes contributions (mandatory and match on voluntary) to the defined contribution portion of the Hybrid plan.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Pension Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Roanoke County, Virginia's Pension Plan (a cost-sharing multiple employer plan administered by the VRS)

Changes of benefit terms - There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions
since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2021. Changes to the
actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For
healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set
separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Post Employment Health Coverage
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Valuation Date: 6/30/2022
Measurement Date: 6/30/2023

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 to pay related benefits.

Methods and assumptions used to determine OPEB liability:

Actuarial Cost Method

Entry age normal level % of salary

Discount Rate

4.13% per annum

Inflation

2.50% per year

Healthcare Trend Rate

Starts at an initial rate of 7.00% decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 4.50%.

Salary Increase Rates

3.50% per annum

Retirement Age

The average age at retirement is 62.

Mortality Rates

General Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount
Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-
2021. Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor
Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using
Scale MP-2021. Disabled Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 Non-Safety
Disabled Retiree Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully
generational using Scale MP-2021.




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Authority's Share of Net OPEB Liability
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2023

Roanoke County Group Life Insurance Plan

Employer's
Proportionate Share

Employer's of the Net GLI OPEB
Employer's Proportionate Liability Plan Fiduciary
Proportion of the Share of the Employer's as a Percentage of Net Position as a
Net GLI OPEB Net GLI OPEB Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total
Date Liability Liability Payroll (3)/(4) GLI OPEB Liability
(1) (2) 3) “) (5) (6)

2023 0.00848% S 101,642 1,909,925 5.32% 69.30%
2022 0.00880% 105,912 1,913,347 5.54% 67.21%
2021 0.00973% 113,284 2,002,539 5.66% 67.45%
2020 0.00977% 163,037 2,188,818 7.45% 52.64%
2019 0.00980% 158,996 1,979,670 8.03% 52.00%
2018 0.00956% 145,236 1,860,564 7.81% 51.22%
2017 0.00883% 132,892 1,630,826 8.15% 48.86%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2017 valuation is not available. However,

additional years will be included as they become available.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2024

Roanoke County Group Life Insurance Plan

Contributions in Contributions

Relation to Contributions as a % of

Contractually Contractually Deficiency Employer's Covered

Required Required (Excess) Covered Payroll

Date Contribution Contribution (1) - () Payroll (2)/(4)

(1 (2) (3) 4 (5)

2024 S 11,566 S 11,566 S - S 2,137,222 0.54%
2023 10,314 10,314 - 1,909,925 0.54%
2022 10,332 10,332 - 1,913,347 0.54%
2021 10,814 10,814 - 2,002,539 0.54%
2020 11,382 11,382 - 2,188,818 0.52%
2019 10,294 10,294 - 1,979,670 0.52%
2018 9,675 9,675 - 1,860,564 0.52%
2017 8,480 8,480 - 1,630,826 0.52%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2017 is not available. However, additional years will be
included as they become available.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Roanoke County Group Life Insurance Plan

Changes of benefit terms - There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions
since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the
actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For

healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020
Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set

separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability No change

Discount Rate No change




STATISTICAL SECTION




Statistical Section

This part of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s annual comprehensive financial
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the Authority’s overall financial health.

Contents
Financial Trends
Page
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 60-62
how the Authority’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors 63-67
affecting the Authority’s ability to generate its operating revenue.
Debt Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 68-69
affordability of the Authority’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 70-71
reader understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with
other authorities.
Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the Authority’s operations and 72-73

resources to help the reader understand how the Authority’s financial
information relates to the services the Authority provides and the
activities it performs.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)

(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 5

Gain (Loss) Total Non-
on Interest Operating
Fiscal Interest Sale of and Fiscal Income
Year Revenue Assets Charges (Expenses)
2024 S 487,567 S 26,110 S (562,447) S (48,770)
2023 333,864 107,951 (586,115) (144,300)
2022 27,500 299,355 (640,213) (313,358)
2021 24,266 - (650,970) (626,704)
2020 207,474 (16,975) (500,843) (310,344)
2019 295,546 128,514 (539,514) (115,454)
2018 165,909 (47,796) (533,080) (414,967)
2017 158,602 - (147,559) 11,043
2016 106,683 - 106,683
2015 69,368 69,368

Source: RVRA audited financial statements



Table 6
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Annual Tonnage Received
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Municipal Commercial Private Residential Total

Year Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage
2024 102,655 143,058 54,084 11,982 311,779
2023 103,699 126,068 46,333 11,971 288,071
2022 104,131 105,391 50,466 11,683 271,671
2021 108,815 67,076 44,011 12,683 232,585
2020 109,912 75,927 44,691 10,728 241,258
2019 106,915 100,434 43,838 11,805 262,992
2018 99,326 103,139 38,854 10,844 252,163
2017 96,459 84,839 29,708 10,158 221,164
2016 84,167 46,854 23,553 9,329 163,903
2015 82,865 44,417 22,916 8,541 158,739

Source: RVRA reports provided by staff



Table 7
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Principal Customers
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

FY 2024 FY 2015
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
Amount of Total Amount of Total

City of Roanoke S 2,395,116 14.23% S 1,946,447 23.56%
County of Roanoke 2,115,102 12.57% 1,819,454 22.03%
Waste Management Inc 1,535,379 9.12% 895,687 10.84%
First Piedmont Corporation 1,035,022 6.15% 530,172 6.42%
GFL (formerly County Waste) 1,692,666 10.06% 151,729 1.84%
City of Salem 872,208 5.18% N/A 0.009%
Tidy Services 716,882 4.26% 312,829 3.79%
Residential Disposal Program 718,749 4.27% 438,105 5.30%
Republic Services 1,567,080 9.31% 255,500 3.09%
Town of Vinton 203,951 1.21% 162,461 1.97%
Subtotal largest customers 12,852,155 76.35% 6,512,384 78.84%
Balance From other Customers 3,980,428 23.65% 1,747,564 21.16%
Grand Totals S 16,832,583 100.00% S 8,259,948 100.00%

Source: RVRA reports provided by staff



Table 8
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Disposal Fees Per Ton
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Municipal Commercial Private Residential
Year Rate Rate Rate Rate

2024 S 55.00 S 65.75 § 65.75 § 55.00
2023 55.00 64.50 64.50 55.00
2022 53.50 62.75 62.75 53.50
2021 53.50 62.75 62.75 53.50
2020 53.50 61.50 61.50 53.50
2019 51.50 61.50 61.50 51.50
2018 49.50 59.50 59.50 49.50
2017 49.50 59.50 59.50 49.50
2016 49.00 59.00 59.00 49.00
2015 48.00 58.00 58.00 48.00

Source: RVRA Budget Book
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RoBiNsON, FARMER, Cox AssociaTes, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

CPAs | CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Members of the Board
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Roanoke, Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards,
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial
statements of the business-type activities of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 23, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
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those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C;po’z{mw— ) %KUMU«, 47/ Arsociade.

Blacksburg, Virginia
September 23, 2024





